
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: December 16, 2021 

TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

PLACE: Lenawee Room |Human Services Bldg. 
 1040 S. Winter Street 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the November 18, 2021, Meeting [ACTION]  ..........................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) — None 

(1) #21-16 — Rollin Township rezoning [ACTION]  ..............................................................  5 

(2) #21-17 — Woodstock Township rezoning [ACTION]  ...................................................  15 

(3) #21-18 — Woodstock Township rezoning [ACTION]  ...................................................  33 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) — None 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) 

(1) #21-02 — City of Adrian [ACTION]  ...............................................................................  53 

(2) #21-03 — Rollin Township [ACTION]  ...........................................................................  59 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 
b. New Business — None 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

Please note that the meeting will take place in person. 
The location is the Lenawee Room of the Human Services Building (1040 S. Winter Street). 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for January 20, 2022 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #1 

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


This page is intentionally blank. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #2 



  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, November 18, 2021 

Lenawee Room ● Lenawee County Human Services Building ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee County Commission; Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC 
Secretary; Ms. Carrie Dillon, Education Representative; Ms. Rebecca Liedel, 
LCPC Chair; Mr. Bruce Nickel; Mr. Ralph Tillotson, Lenawee County Commis-
sion; and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: None 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary 

Item 1 Call to order. Chair Liedel called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. Those in attendance 
joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Ms. Carrie Dillon, the recently appointed Education Representative, was welcomed back to the 
LCPC (she previously served on the Commission from 2015-2017). Commissioners introduced 
themselves to Ms. Dillon. 

Item 2 Public comment. None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 11/18/2021 meeting agenda for approval. 

Comm. Dersham made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to approve the November 18, 
2021, meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 10/21/2021 meeting minutes for approval. 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the October 21, 2021, 
meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). None. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s). 

(1) #21-27 | Seneca Township. Commissioners reviewed an application for a parcel (ID 

#SE0-107-2250-00) totaling 25.19 acres and located in Section 7 (T8S-R2E) of the 
Township. Staff summarized his memo and advised Commissioners to recommend 
approval with comments of the agreement (see the staff report). 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Witt, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval with comments of the PA 116 agreement to the 
Seneca Township Board (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
October 21, 2021, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s). None. 

Item 6 Other Business. 

a. Old Business. None. 

b. New Business. – 2022 Meeting & Submittal Deadline Schedules. 

Staff submitted the proposed meeting and submittal deadline schedules for 2022 for ap-
proval. Comm. Tillotson suggested an earlier meeting time. The issue was discussed and a 
meeting time of 6:00 pm was settled upon. 

Comm. Dersham made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the 2022 meet-
ing and submittal deadline schedules as presented, but moving the meeting time to 6:00 
pm. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 7 Public Comment. None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment. Comm. Bolton suggested a topic for the Annual Dinner is a 
summary of how ARPA funds are being spent by each community participating in the event. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 6:44 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, LCPC Recording Secretary 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #4 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #21-16 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 7, 2021 

 Proposal: The rezoning of properties in Rollin Township 

Request 

The 3 subject properties are proposed for rezoning to a ‘single-family residential (R-1)’ district, from a 
‘local commercial (C-1)’ district. 

Purpose 

The Zoning Amendment Form states that the purpose of the proposed change is for a single-family 
dwelling.1  

Location and Size of the Property 

 Location – The 3 subject properties (#RL0-685-0441-00, #RLO-685-0450-00, and #RL0-685-

0442-00) are located primarily in Section 10 (T6S-R1E) of Rollin Township, south of Devils Lake 
(see Figure 1). Elm Street borders the 3 properties to the north. 

 Size – The 3 subject parcels have a combined area of approximately 2.99 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

 Current Land Use – Although the subject properties are currently vacant, they are assessed 

‘residential’ according to property records (see Figure 2). According to the Township, properties 
to the north are used for multiple-family residential. Local commercial uses are located to the 
east. Single-family uses are located to the south and west. 

 Future Land Use – Rollin Township’s Future Land Use Map recommends ‘low density residen-

tial’ uses for all of the subject properties, as well as all parcels located on the south side of Elm 
Street (see Figure 3). 

 Current Zoning – The 3 subject parcels are currently zoned ‘local commercial (C-1)’, as is the 

property to the east (see Figure 4). 

  

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #5 



Page 2 CZ #21-16 
 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

 Public Road/Street Access –Elm Street, a county local roadway, provides direct access to 

the subject properties. 

 Public Water and Sewer – Municipal sewer service is available according to the Township. 

Municipal water service is not available (see the background information). 

 Environmental Constraints – The Township is unaware of any environmental constraints 

(see the background information). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Rollin Township Planning Commis-

sion recommends approval of the rezonings (see the background information). 

Staff Analysis – Rollin Township has a Zoning Plan that includes the following criteria upon which a 

rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The Future Land Use Plan recommends ‘low density residential’ uses for all 3 of the subject 
properties (see Figure 3). The Zoning Plan equates ‘single family residential (R-1 and R-2)’ zoning 
with this Future Land Use Plan designation. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The 3 subject properties are already assessed for single-family residential uses. Existing ‘R-
1’ zoning is located to the west and ‘R-2’ zoning is located to the south (see Figure 4). 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Development of the properties for a single-family dwelling should not adversely impact Elm 
Road or the sanitary sewer that serves the area. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. Properties to the south and west are already single-family residential in nature. 

Staff Advisement – The criteria listed above support the rezon-

ing of the 3 properties. Accordingly, staff advises the Lenawee 
County Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH 
COMMENTS (see the staff report) of the proposed rezoning to 
‘single-family residential (R-1)’ of the 3 properties to the Rollin 
Township Board: the remnant of C-1 zoning located on the south 
side of Elm Street should also be rezoned at some point in the 
near future. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Rollin Township. 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #6 



Page 3 CZ #21-16 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 2 
Property Assessment 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #7 



Page 4 CZ #21-16 
 

Figure 3 
Municipal Future Land Use 

 

Figure 4 
Municipal Zoning 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #8 



Page 5 CZ #21-16 
 

Figure 5 
Aerial Photograph 

 

 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #9 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #10 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #11 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #12 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #13 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #14 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #21-17 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 9, 2021 

 Proposal: The rezoning of property in Woodstock Township 

Request 

The subject property is proposed for rezoning to a ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ district, from a 
‘rural non-farm residential (RNF)’ district. 

Purpose 

The Zoning Amendment Form states that the purpose of the proposed change is a motorcycle repair fa-
cility.1 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (WD0-136-4920-00) is located in Section 36 (T5S-R1E) of Woodstock Township, on 
the northeast side of US-223 (see Figure 1). Teachout Road is located to the southeast. The subject par-
cel has an area of approximately 1.63 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

 Current Land Use – The parcel and surrounding properties are currently assessed for ‘residen-

tial’ uses according to property records (see Figure 2). The subject property is currently used as a 
residence. 

 Future Land Use – Woodstock Township’s Future Land Use Map recommends ‘commercial’ 

uses for the southwest side of US-223 between Slee and Teachout Roads. The subject property 
is located on the northeast side of that stretch of US-223, where ‘agricultural’ uses are recom-
mended (see Figure 3). 

 Current Zoning – The subject parcel is currently zoned ‘rural non-farm residential (RNF)’, as 

are the surrounding properties (see Figure 4). 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

 Public Road/Street Access – The subject property is adjacent to US-223, a state highway. 

 Public Water and Sewer – Municipal sewer and water services are not available according 

to the Township (see the background information). There are no plans to make those services 
available. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #15 



Page 2 CZ #21-17 
 

 Environmental Constraints – The Township is unaware of any environmental constraints 

(see the background information). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Woodstock Township Planning 

Commission recommends approval of the rezoning (see the background information). 

LCPC Staff Analysis – Sec. 22.3.3.D of the Woodstock Township Zoning Ordinance establishes the 

following amendment ‘review considerations’: 

1. Will the proposed amendment be in accordance with the basic intent and purpose of the zon-
ing ordinance? 

Yes. ‘Highway service commercial (C-3)’ zoning is a recognized zoning district in Woodstock 
Township. 

2. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the comprehensive plan of the township? 

No. ‘Commercial’ uses are proposed for the southwest side of US-223 between Slee and 
Teachout Roads. The subject property is located on the northeast side of that stretch of US-223 
(see Figure 3). Other commercial areas are clearly identified on both sides of the pertinent road-
way. 

3. Have conditions changed since the zoning ordinance was adopted, or was there a mistake in 
the zoning ordinance that justifies the amendment? 

No. Conditions have not changed. 

4. Will the amendment correct an inequitable situation created by the zoning ordinance, rather 
than merely grant special privileges? 

N/A. 

5. Will the amendment result in unlawful exclusionary zoning? 

No. The proposed rezoning should not result in any exclusion. 

6. Will the amendment set an inappropriate precedent, resulting in the need to correct future 
planning mistakes? 

Yes. Commercial uses are proposed for the opposite side of the stretch of US-223 that the prop-
erty abuts. The proposed commercial area does not extend to the northeast side of US-223. 

7. If a rezoning is requested, is the proposed zoning consistent with the existing land uses of sur-
rounding property? 

No. The subject property is surrounded by residential uses. 

8. If a rezoning is requested, could all requirements in the proposed zoning classification be com-
plied with on the subject parcel? 

Yes. The subject property meets the thresholds for minimum size and lot width. 

9. If a rezoning is requested, is the proposed zoning consistent with the trends in land develop-
ment in the general vicinity of the property in question? 

No. The closest commercial use to the subject property, situated on the northeast side of US-

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #16 



Page 3 CZ #21-17 
 

223, is located west of Parker Highway. 

10. If a rezoning is requested, what is the impact on the township infrastructure? The planning 
commission and the township board shall make a determination of whether public facilities 
are readily available and whether the potential impact of the rezoning would adversely impact 
the level of service standards of any public facility. 

US-223 should be able to handle the traffic generated by the use. 

Staff Advisement – The proposed rezoning does not match the 

recommendation of the Future Land Use Plan. Consequently, staff 
advises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend 
DISAPPROVAL of the proposed rezoning to ‘highway service com-
mercial (C-3)’ to the Woodstock Township Board. Please note that 
conditions cannot be instituted on a straight rezoning request. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Woodstock Township. 

 
 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #17 



Page 4 CZ #21-17 
 

Figure 2 
Property Assessment 

 

Figure 3 
Municipal Future Land Use 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #18 



Page 5 CZ #21-17 
 

Figure 4 
Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 5 
Aerial Photograph 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #19 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #20 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #21 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #22 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #23 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #24 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #25 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #26 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #27 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #28 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #29 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #30 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #31 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #32 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #21-18 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 9, 2021 

 Proposal: The rezoning of property in Woodstock Township 

Request 

The subject property is proposed for rezoning to a ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ district, from a 
‘local commercial (C-1)’ district. 

Purpose 

The Zoning Amendment Form states that the purpose of the proposed change is a self-service storage 
facility.1 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (WD0-107-4850-00) is located in Section 7 (T5S-R1E) of Woodstock Township, on 
the south side of US-12 (see Figure 1). Briggs Highway also borders the property to the east. The subject 
parcel has an area of approximately 8.81 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

 Current Land Use – The parcel and surrounding properties are currently assessed for ‘residen-

tial’ uses according to property records (see Figure 2). Commercial properties are located nearby 
to the west. The subject property is currently used for ‘bulk landscape materials’ according to 
the Township. 

 Future Land Use – Woodstock Township’s Future Land Use Map recommends ‘commercial’ 

uses for the subject property and other properties along US-12 (see Figure 3). 

 Current Zoning – The subject parcel is currently zoned ‘local commercial (C-1)’ (see Figure 4). 

Surrounding properties are zoned ‘agricultural (AG)’ and ‘recreation open space (RO)’. ‘General 
commercial (C-2)’ and ‘highway service commercial (C-3)’ zoning districts are located nearby to 
the west. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

 Public Road/Street Access – The subject property is adjacent to US-12, a state highway. 

Briggs Highway, a county local roadway, also abuts the property to the east. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #33 



Page 2 CZ #21-18 
 

 Public Water and Sewer – Municipal sewer and water services are not available according 

to the Township (see the background information). There are no plans to make those services 
available. 

 Environmental Constraints – The Township is unaware of any environmental constraints 

(see the background information). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Woodstock Township Planning 

Commission recommends approval of the rezoning (see the background information). 

LCPC Staff Analysis – Sec. 22.3.3.D of the Woodstock Township Zoning Ordinance establishes the 

following amendment ‘review considerations’: 

1. Will the proposed amendment be in accordance with the basic intent and purpose of the zon-
ing ordinance? 

Yes. ‘Highway service commercial (C-3)’ zoning is a recognized zoning district in Woodstock 
Township. 

2. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the comprehensive plan of the township? 

Yes. The subject property is located in an area along US-12 proposed for commercial develop-
ment. 

3. Have conditions changed since the zoning ordinance was adopted, or was there a mistake in 
the zoning ordinance that justifies the amendment? 

No. Conditions have not changed. 

4. Will the amendment correct an inequitable situation created by the zoning ordinance, rather 
than merely grant special privileges? 

N/A. 

5. Will the amendment result in unlawful exclusionary zoning? 

No. The proposed rezoning should not result in any exclusion. 

6. Will the amendment set an inappropriate precedent, resulting in the need to correct future 
planning mistakes? 

No. Commercial uses are proposed for the stretch of US-12 that the property abuts. 

7. If a rezoning is requested, is the proposed zoning consistent with the existing land uses of sur-
rounding property? 

Yes. Commercial uses/zoning are located nearby to the west of the subject property. 

8. If a rezoning is requested, could all requirements in the proposed zoning classification be com-
plied with on the subject parcel? 

Yes. The subject property meets the thresholds for minimum size and lot width. 

9. If a rezoning is requested, is the proposed zoning consistent with the trends in land develop-
ment in the general vicinity of the property in question? 

Other commercial uses are already located along the US-12 corridor nearby to the west. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #34 



Page 3 CZ #21-18 
 

10. If a rezoning is requested, what is the impact on the township infrastructure? The planning 
commission and the township board shall make a determination of whether public facilities 
are readily available and whether the potential impact of the rezoning would adversely impact 
the level of service standards of any public facility. 

US-12 should be able to handle the traffic generated by the existing use. 

Staff Advisement – The proposed rezoning matches the rec-

ommendation of the Future Land Use Plan. Consequently, staff ad-
vises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend 
APPROVAL of the proposed rezoning to ‘highway service commer-
cial (C-3)’ to the Woodstock Township Board. Please note that 
conditions cannot be instituted on a straight rezoning request. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Woodstock Township. 

 
 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #35 



Page 4 CZ #21-18 
 

Figure 2 
Property Assessment 

 

Figure 3 
Municipal Future Land Use 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #36 



Page 5 CZ #21-18 
 

Figure 4 
Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 5 
Aerial Photograph 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #37 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #38 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #39 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #40 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #41 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #42 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #43 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #44 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #45 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #46 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #47 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #48 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #49 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #50 



12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #51 



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #52 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Master Plan Report | #21-02 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 9, 2021 

 Proposal: Proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan 

Purpose 
Section 41 (3) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (PA 33 of 2008) states that “if the county planning 
commission . . . that receives a copy of a proposed [municipal] master plan . . . submits comments, the 
comments shall include, but need not be limited to, both of the following, as applicable: 

(a) A statement whether the county planning commission . . . considers the proposed master plan to be 
inconsistent with the master plan of any municipality or region described in subsection (2). . . . 

(b) If the county has a county master plan, a statement whether the county planning commission consid-
ers the proposed master plan to be inconsistent with the county master plan”(MCL 125.3841(3)). 

Staff Analysis 

Is the proposed master plan inconsistent with the master plan of any adjacent municipality? 

Two townships surround the City of Adrian. The comparison of their proposed land use patterns with the 
City of Adrian’s future land use (FLU) map are discussed along the cardinal points of the compass: 

 North.  The Adrian Charter Township Master Plan recommends residential uses along the majority 

of the common boundary, with the exception of mixed use areas proposed along the US-223 and 
M-52 corridors (see Map 2). The City of Adrian FLU map proposes a predominant mix of residential 
and quasi-public/college or university uses along its northern border, complimenting what is pro-
posed in the Township (see Map 1). A flexible development area proposed in the northeastern 
sector of the City meshes well with the neighboring mixed use area proposed by the Township. 

 South.  The Madison Township Master Plan identifies industrial uses along the City of Adrian’s 

common border to the southeast; commercial uses to the south; and predominantly residential 
uses to the southeast, with industrial and commercial development proposed along the M-34 
corridor (see Map 3). The City of Adrian FLU map recommends a similar distribution of uses along 
the common border (see Map 1). 

Is the proposed master plan inconsistent with Lenawee County’s master plan? 

The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan includes the City of Adrian in its intensive development 
area (see Map 4). A greenway is proposed along the River Raisin. The land use pattern proposed in the 
City of Adrian FLU map generally compliments this pattern (see Map 1). 

  

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #53 



Page 2 Proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Staff Recommendation 
Based upon the above analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commission (LCPC) to state 
that, in its opinion, the future land use map contained in the proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive 
Plan is: 

 generally consistent with the Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and 

 generally compliments the master plans of adjacent municipalities in Lenawee County. 

  

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #54 



Page 3 Proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Map 1 
Raisin Charter Township Proposed Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #55 



Page 4 Proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Map 2 
Adrian Township Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #56 



Page 5 Proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Map 3 
Madison Township Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #57 



Page 6 Proposed City of Adrian 2021 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Map 4 
Lenawee County Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #58 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Master Plan Report | #21-03 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 9, 2021 

 Proposal: Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 

Purpose 
Section 41 (3) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (PA 33 of 2008) states that “if the county planning 
commission . . . that receives a copy of a proposed [municipal] master plan . . . submits comments, the 
comments shall include, but need not be limited to, both of the following, as applicable: 

(a) A statement whether the county planning commission . . . considers the proposed master plan to be 
inconsistent with the master plan of any municipality or region described in subsection (2). . . . 

(b) If the county has a county master plan, a statement whether the county planning commission consid-
ers the proposed master plan to be inconsistent with the county master plan”(MCL 125.3841(3)). 

Staff Analysis 

Is the proposed master plan inconsistent with the master plan of any adjacent municipality? 

Four townships and one village surround Rollin Township in Lenawee County. The comparison of their 
proposed land use patterns with Rollin Township’s future land use (FLU) map are discussed along the 
cardinal points of the compass: 

 North.  The Woodstock Township Master Plan recommends agricultural uses along the majority 

of the common boundary, with the exception of residential development along Devils Lake and 
some commercial development along US-223 (see Map 2). The Rollin Township FLU map proposes 
agricultural uses along most of that border, with residential development along Devils Lake (see 
Map 1). Staff was not able to locate a future land use map for the Village of Addison. Conse-
quently, no analysis is provided. 

 East.  The Cambridge Township Master Plan recommends agricultural uses in its southwestern 

corner (see Map 3), as does Rollin Township in its northeastern corner (see Map 1). The Rome 
Township Master Plan recommends a mix of agricultural, agricultural estates (i.e., rural residen-
tial), and low-density residential uses along the common border (see Map 4). Rollin Township 
proposes agriculture and open space uses along its eastern border (see Map 1). 

 South.  The Hudson Township Master Plan identifies agricultural uses along the majority of the 

common border, with a residential area proposed in the vicinity of Posey Lake (see Map 5). The 
Rollin Township FLU map recommends agricultural uses for most of the border too, with residen-
tial development proposed around Posey Lake (see Map 1). 

 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #59 



Page 2 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Is the proposed master plan inconsistent with Lenawee County’s master plan? 

The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends intensive development around the out-
skirts of the Village of Addison; open space development/recreation in the vicinity of Devils Lake and 
Round Lake; low-intensity development to the southwest (which has yet to occur); and agricultural uses 
to the southeast (see Map 6). The Rollin Township FLUP proposes agricultural uses for the overwhelming 
majority of the Township. Residential uses and associated commercial development are recommended 
along the shores of the various lakes located in the Township (see Map 1). 

Staff Recommendation 
Based upon the above analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commission (LCPC) to state 
that, in its opinion, the future land use map contained in the proposed edition of the Raisin Township 
Master Plan is: 

 generally consistent with the Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and 

 generally compliments the master plans of adjacent municipalities in Lenawee County. 

  

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #60 



Page 3 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Map 1 
Raisin Charter Township Proposed Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #61 



Page 4 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Map 2 
Woodstock Township Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #62 



Page 5 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Map 3 
Cambridge Township Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #63 



Page 6 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Map 4 
Rome Township Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #64 



Page 7 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Map 5 
Hudson Township Future Land Use Map 

 

  

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #65 



Page 8 Proposed 2021 edition of the Rollin Township Master Plan 
 

Map 6 
Lenawee County Future Land Use Map 

 

12/16/21 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #66 




